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MLK CRESCENT POOL DAMAGE REPAIR PROJECT INVITATION FOR BID 

Responses to Questions and RFIs 

Issued April 21, 2017 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS NO. 1 

QUESTION ANSWER 

If we are the successful bidder, who will our 
contract be with?  Yerba Buena Gardens 
Management, MJM Management, City of SF or 
BET&R?  

The contract will be with MJM Management 
Group. MJM has a contract with the Office of 
Community Investment and Infrastructure 
(Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency 
of the City and County of San Francisco); the 
successful bidder will be a subcontractor. 

Who will replace the bird deterrent on the 
crescent pond? 

MJM will replace the monofilament line and 
acrylic brackets as needed once the work is 
complete. The contractor will not be expected to 
do so. 

Attachment #11 Sample Yerba Buena Gardens 
Service Contract, section 2b. Compensation - 
since this project is a competitive lump sum 
project can the audit provision be removed? If 
not, what are the terms and conditions 
of the audit, how will it be performed, what 
documents would need to be presented? 

We will remove the audit provision in 
Attachment #11 but please note that all 
provisions of the IFB package will be considered 
part of the contract. Therefore, Notwithstanding 
Attachment #11, bidder’s attention is directed to 
Special Provisions 24 and Attachment #11A, 
section C.C., which address audits and record 
retention. Please note this project is federally-
assisted and the provisions regarding audits and 
record retention are required. Where there may 
be a conflict in record retention years or other 
matters, the higher standard shall prevail. 

Will there be extra days added to the contract for 
days that cannot be performed due to inclement 
weather? 

The expected duration for waterproofing system 
application is anticipated to be relatively short in 
comparison with the overall project schedule. 
Weather protection is the responsibility of the 
Contractor. Protection of the waterproofing areas 
during the construction project shall be 
accounted for in the Bid, and it is our opinion that 
the overall Project Schedule should not be 
adversely affected by inclement weather. 

Waterproofing must be applied to 
manufacturer’s recommendations; no moisture 
should be present. Shouldn’t all fountains be 
turned off for the duration of the waterproofing 
process. 

As discussed during the Pre-Bid Meeting, the 
intent is to maintain operation of the MLK Jr. 
Waterfall, and that over-spray from the waterfall 
is not expected, other than during limited, high-
wind events. If water spray is detected during 
critical waterproofing application periods, the 
operation of the waterfall can be coordinated 
with YBG engineering staff, to discuss temporary 
turn-off of the waterfall if needed. 
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Will there be a full time on-site monitoring 
inspector for the PMMA application? 

BET&R will provide part-time monitoring (i.e. 3-
day site visits every other week) of the 
waterproofing system installation process (i.e. 
Laurenco waterproofing with Laurenco PMMA 
flashings). BET&R monitoring site visits will be 
coordinated with the Contractor so we can make 
concerted efforts to inspect key points in the 
waterproofing system installation, however, full-
time monitoring is not expected, and not part of 
BET&R's contract. The Contractor shall also 
provide their own Quality Control/Quality 
Assurance program for the Project. The quality 
control requirements are also described in the 
Scope of Work section 1.7 - Quality Control. We 
also anticipate that the waterproofing system 
manufacturer, Laurenco Waterproofing, will also 
be on-site intermittently to observe application 
of their systems. 

 

  


